
URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 14, 2015 

0:00 DATE  COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, CITY OF WOODBURN, COUNTY 
OF MARION, STATE OF OREGON, SEPTEMBER 14, 2015 

CONVENED   The meeting convened at 6:05 p.m. with Member Lonergan presiding. 

ROLL CALL 
Chair Figley Absent 
Member Schaub Present – 6:30 p.m. 
Member Lonergan Present  
Member Carney Present 
Member Morris Present – 6:15 p.m. 
Member Ellsworth Present 
Member Alonso Leon Present 

Staff Present: City Administrator Derickson, City Attorney Shields, Police Chief Russell, 
Public Works Director Scott, Assistant City Administrator Row, Human Resources Director 
Hereford, Communications Coordinator Horton, Urban Renewal Manager Stowers, City 
Engineer Liljequist, Executive Legal Assistant Veliz 

0:00 CONSENT AGENDA 
A. Urban Renewal Agency minutes of June 22, 2015.
Ellsworth/Alonso Leon… adopt the Consent Agenda.  The motion passed unanimously.

0:01 PRESENTATION  

Public Works Director Scott provided a staff report and presentation on First Street 
improvements from Oak to Harrison and information on options for a downtown restroom. 
Members asked questions and provided comments and direction regarding the First Street 
improvements. Member Carney stated that he favors the head in parking option with the idea 
of incorporating the parking lot behind the post office as part of it.  Member Lonergan stated 
that he likes where we are going with the options but wants to see how the businesses feel 
about this.  Member Alonso Leon concurred with Member Lonergan. Member Ellsworth 
stated that she likes the idea of the angled parking and feels it’s a safer option. Member 
Lonergan stated that he is in favor of rehabbing the downtown Second Street, he is in favor 
of the alleys and going with the restroom and doing away with the splash fountain. He added 
that he would like to dedicate $100,000 of Urban Renewal funds to go to an art project that 
can go along with this project. Member Carney stated that he liked that idea and that perhaps 
the City could provide art grants. Member Ellsworth stated that she is in support of 
hardscapes over landscapes that we have to maintain.   City Administrator Derickson asked 
if the agency wanted staff to come back with a plan that includes the alleys as part of the 
overall project.  Member Lonergan stated that the unimproved alleys should be improved. 
Member Morris stated that the City should poll the public before they spend any money on 
art.  Member Alonso Leon concurred. Member Schaub stated that this could be a great 
opportunity for talented artists in the community to get involved and that she is in favor of a 
splash fountain in one of our parks. She added that she is in favor of angled parking and 

Page 1 – URA Board Minutes, September 14, 2015 

1



URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 14, 2015 

supports getting feedback on this from businesses and the citizens.   Member Ellsworth 
stated that she supports option one, that she doesn’t want to have any dead planters and is in 

 favor or updating the parking lot. She added that she likes the idea of attaching the bathroom 
to the library and she would love to see a splash fountain at Centennial Park.  Member 
Carney stated that he is also in favor of option one.  City Administrator Derickson stated that 
they can come back with a plan for a public bubbler and the alleys.  He added that it appears 
the restroom option has been decided and that option one is the member’s preference but 
that they will keep option two available for public discussion and outreach.  He stated that 
they could do a survey on an art project and could look and see what other cities have done.   

  
0:27 ADJOURNMENT 

Ellsworth/Carney … meeting be adjourned.  The motion passed unanimously.   
The meeting adjourned at 7:10 p.m. 
 

 
 
APPROVED                                                            
                      KATHRYN FIGLEY, CHAIR 

 
 
ATTEST                                                                         
               Heather Pierson, City Recorder 
               City of Woodburn, Oregon 

 
Page 2 – URA Board Minutes, September 14, 2015 

2



Agenda Item 
 

 
 November 9, 2015 

 
 
To: Urban Renewal Agency Board 
 
From: Jim Hendryx, Economic and Development Services Director 
  
Subject: URG 2014-03 145 Arthur Street Masonic Lodge - Second Extension 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Agency approval, since there were extenuating circumstances associated with 
this project that caused delays beyond the typical grant cycle period.   
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Agency approved the above referenced $5,000 interior grant for the Masonic 
Lodge in May 2014.  Due to pending reroofing of the building, the interior project 
was delayed until the roofing was completed.  Unfortunately, prior to completion 
of the re-roof project, the building was severely damaged due to a sudden storm, 
further delaying the interior restoration.  The applicant requested, and was 
granted, a six month grant extension to complete the interior work, which expired 
this past October.  Program guidelines limit grant completion to 12 months, with 
one six month extension, for a total of 18 months. Work on damage caused by 
the storm was delayed due to a number of factors, including settlement with the 
contractor’s insurance agency.   
 
Don Judson, President of the Woodburn Masonic Trustees, submitted a request for 
additional time to complete the interior project.  The request requires Agency 
approval and has not been reviewed by the Design Review Advisory 
Subcommittee (DARS), since the request is outside their authority to approve.  
Additionally, the request came in the day after the most recent DARS meeting. 
 
Staff is submitting the request for the Agency’s consideration.  There are 
extenuating circumstances associated with this project that caused delays 
beyond the typical grant cycle period. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

3



Urban Renewal Grant and Loan Application Review 
URG 2014-03 145 Arthur Street (Masonic Lodge) 
 
 
Proposal 
The Applicant requests additional time to complete the project, since there were 
extenuating circumstances that affected the building and greatly delayed the 
work.  Program guidelines limit grants to 18 months and Agency action is required 
to approve this request.   
 
Financial Impact 
Already budgeted 
 
Attachments: 
Request for Second Extension Letter 

4



5



Agenda Item 
 

 
                                        November 9, 2015 

 
 
To: Urban Renewal Agency Board 
 
From: Jim Hendryx, Economic and Development Services Director 
  
Subject: URG 2015-12 702-722 Young Street (Rosera) 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Applicant Charles Rosera requests that the Urban Renewal Agency Board 
approve an exterior Urban Renewal grant in the amount of $3,325. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
On July 8, 2013, the Urban Renewal Agency Board adopted a resolution 
expanding the downtown Grant and Loan Program to include properties along 
the Young Street corridor and the Young/99E intersection, as specified in the 
resolution. The program is designed to provide matching funds for exterior 
($10,000) and interior ($5,000) improvements to properties located in the Urban 
Renewal Grant and Loan District. The program also provides loan funds ($25,000) 
to further these same improvements.  On June 22, 2015 the Agency reduced the 
public grant match from 1:1 (50%) to 3:1 (25%). 
 
The Applicant has owned the Rosemont Townhouses since its construction in 1989.  
The property includes ten townhouses with an average rental occupancy of 7-10 
years.  On September 8, 2014 the Applicant was awarded $5,000 to update the 
façade on four of his ten rental units. The Applicant originally requested $6,650 
(50% of total project cost) to update the façade on the remaining units.  However, 
the new guidelines limit the match to 25% of project cost, or $3,325. 
 
DARS considered the Applicant’s written request to increase the grant amount to 
50% at their October 29, 2015 meeting, but concluded that the application could 
only receive the current City match of 25%.  DARS recommended that the 
Agency approve the grant request. 
 
 
 
 

 

6



Urban Renewal Grant and Loan Application Review 
URG 2015-12 702-722 Young Street (Rosera) 
 
 
 
Proposal 
 
The exterior grant proposal is to install new energy-efficient windows and siding 
on six rental units. 
 
Exterior grant (25%):    $ 3,325 
Estimated cost of all improvements:  $13,300 
 
 
Program Criteria: 
  
Property Location & Ownership 
The property is located at 702-722 Young Street. 
 

• That the property is within the Urban Renewal Grant and Loan District 
 
The property is within the Urban Renewal Grant and Loan District. 

 
• That the proposal complies with the downtown architectural design 

standards and signage standards 
 
The proposal complies with the downtown architectural design 
standards and signage standards. 

 
• That the project encourages greater marketability of the Urban Renewal 

Grant and Loan District. 
 

Exterior improvements are intended to improve efficiency of the 
multi-family residential property. Improving the longevity of the 
property encourages greater marketability of the area. 

 
• That the proposal will complement the existing surrounding community. 
 

Improvements to the property do not impact the aesthetics of the 
property. 
  

• That the project design works toward restoring the building as closely to 
its original design as possible  

 
The proposed improvements maintain the original façade design. 

 

7



Urban Renewal Grant and Loan Application Review 
URG 2015-12 702-722 Young Street (Rosera) 
 
 

• That building interiors are improved with a focus on addressing      
code-related improvements   

 
Not applicable 

 
 
• That the project is in the public interest 
 

The Urban Renewal Program specifically identifies the need to 
improve buildings within Woodburn’s Urban Renewal Grant and 
Loan District.    

 
Summary and Conclusion  

 
The Grant and Loan Program is intended to encourage and assist business and 
property owners to invest in the Urban Renewal District.  This particular grant 
application is intended to assist the Applicant to replace windows and siding on 
four of his ten rental units. 
 

Conditions of Approval 
 
1. There is a 3/1 match requirement required for the Grant program.  Invoices 

must be submitted for reimbursement.  No grant money will be disbursed until 
the project is completed and is approved by the Agency. 

2. Grant and loan funds cannot be used for any work commenced or completed 
prior to project approval. 

3. Grant and loan funds may be used for materials and services provided by 
licensed contractors. 

4. All necessary building, electrical, plumbing permits must be obtained and work 
inspected and approved. 

5. Projects shall be completed within one year of approval in order to be eligible 
for reimbursement.  Grants provide for a single payment after receipts are 
provided and all completed work is accepted by the City. 

6. All work will be done by licensed contractors and the applicant needs to 
provide at least three bids for every aspect of work greater than $2,500. 

 
 
Attachments: 
Grant Application 
Pictures 
Letter from applicant 
 

8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



Agenda Item 
 

 
                                                         November 9, 2015 

 
 
To: Urban Renewal Agency Board 
 
From: Jim Hendryx, Economic and Development Services Director 
  
Subject: URG 2015-13 303 N. Pacific Highway, Crossroads Grocery & Deli 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
As recommended by the Downtown Advisory Review Subcommittee (DARS), 
approve Sang Park’s request for an exterior Urban Renewal grant in the amount 
of $7,565.   DARS supports that it may be necessary for the applicant to proceed 
with work prior to Agency action. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
On July 8, 2013, the Urban Renewal Agency Board adopted a resolution 
expanding the downtown Grant and Loan program to include properties along 
the Young Street corridor and the Young/99E intersection, as specified in the 
resolution. The program is designed to provide matching funds for exterior 
($10,000) and interior ($5,000) improvements to properties located in the Urban 
Renewal Grant and Loan District.  On June 22, 2015 the Agency reduced the 
City’s match from 1:1 (50%) to 3:1 (25%). 
 
The Applicant is the owner of the Crossroads Grocery & Deli, located at the 
northwest corner of Hwy 99 E and Young Street.  The building was originally 
constructed in 1964.  The application was submitted on October 13, 2015 and 
includes replacing siding, reroofing and painting the building.  According to the 
applicant, the roof is leaking and is causing interior damage and inventory loss.  
As a result, the applicant indicated that he may need to proceed with the roof 
repair in advance of City approval, understanding that this may put part of his 
request at risk of not receiving Urban Renewal funding. 
 
DARS considered Sang Park’s request at their October 29, 2015 meeting, 
including the potential that work may need to be completed in advance of the 
Agency’s decision.  DARS recognizes the situation that the applicant faces and 
recommends agency approval.   
 

 

25



Urban Renewal Grant and Loan Application Review 
URG 2015-13 303 N Pacific Highway (Crossroads Grocery & Deli) 
 
 
 
Proposal 
 
The exterior grant proposal is to remove and replace the failing roof, the siding 
and to paint the exterior of the building. 
 
Exterior grant requested (25%)   $7,565 
Applicant’s contribution (75%):   $22,695 
Estimated cost of all improvements:  $30,260 
 
Grant and loan funds cannot be used for any work commenced or completed 
prior to project approval, without previous consideration by the Agency.  The 
applicant has indicated he may have to proceed with the re-roofing portion of 
the project before the Agency takes action on the grant.  The applicant has had 
difficulty finding roofing contractors to take on the work since the recent rains, 
when water damage occurred to the building and stock, and the matter is 
becoming urgent.  DARS discussed this particular situation and supports the need 
to proceed prior to Agency approval. 
 
At the time of original submittal, the applicant was able to include three bids for 
the roofing portion of the project and two bids for re-siding.  Subsequently an 
additional bid was submitted in time for the DARS meeting. 
 
Program Criteria: 
  
Property Location & Ownership 
The property is located at 303 N Pacific Highway. 
 

• That the property is within the Urban Renewal Grant and Loan District 
 
The property is within the Urban Renewal Grant and Loan District. 

 
• That the proposal complies with the downtown architectural design 

standards and signage standards 
 
The request includes re-roofing the building, installing siding and 
painting the building. The proposal complies with the downtown 
architectural design standards and signage standards. 

 
• That the project encourages greater marketability of the Urban Renewal 

Grant and Loan District. 
 

26



Urban Renewal Grant and Loan Application Review 
URG 2015-13 303 N Pacific Highway (Crossroads Grocery & Deli) 
 
 

Exterior improvements are intended to replace the failing roof,            
re-side and paint the building. Improving the longevity of the 
property encourages greater marketability of the area. 

 
• That the proposal will complement the existing surrounding community. 
 

Improvements to the property do not impact the aesthetics of the 
property. 
  

• That the project design works toward restoring the building as closely to 
its original design as possible  

 
The proposed improvements maintain the original façade design. 

 
• That building interiors are improved with a focus on addressing      

code-related improvements   
 

Not applicable 
 

• That the project is in the public interest 
 

The Urban Renewal Program specifically identifies the need to 
improve buildings within Woodburn’s Urban Renewal Grant and 
Loan District.   
  

Summary and Conclusion  
 

The Grant and Loan Program is intended to encourage and assist business and 
property owners to invest in the Urban Renewal District.  This particular grant 
application is intended to assist the Applicant to re-roof, re-side and paint the 
building.  
 

Conditions of Approval 
 
1. There is a 3 to 1 match requirement required for the Grant program.  Invoices 

must be submitted for reimbursement.  No grant money will be disbursed until 
the project is completed and is approved by the Agency. 

2. Grant and loan funds may be used for materials and services provided by 
licensed contractors. 

3. All necessary building, electrical, and plumbing permits must be obtained and 
the work inspected and approved. 

27



Urban Renewal Grant and Loan Application Review 
URG 2015-13 303 N Pacific Highway (Crossroads Grocery & Deli) 
 
 
4. Projects shall be completed within one year of approval in order to be eligible 

for reimbursement.  Grants provide for a single payment after receipts are 
provided and all completed work is accepted by the City. 

5. All work will be done by licensed contractors and the applicant needs to 
provide at least three bids for every aspect of work greater than $2,500. 

 
 
Attachments: 
Grant Application 
Pictures 

28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



Urban Renewal Grant Application Review 

URG 2015-13 303 N Pacific Highway (Crossroads Grocery & Deli) 
 
 

 

Existing Roofing

Existing roofing 

39



Urban Renewal Grant Application Review 

URG 2015-13 303 N Pacific Highway (Crossroads Grocery & Deli) 
 
 

 

Existing siding – south side of building 

40



Urban Renewal Grant Application Review 

URG 2015-13 303 N Pacific Highway (Crossroads Grocery & Deli) 
 
 

 

 

 

Existing siding – south side of building 

Existing siding – south side of building 

41



42



43



Agenda Item 
 

 
                                                     November 9, 2015 

 
 
To: Urban Renewal Agency Board 
 
From: Jim Hendryx, Economic and Development Services Director 
  
Subject: URG 2015-14 405 N. First Street (Chay Properties, LLC) 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
In agreement with the Downtown Advisory Renewal Subcommittee (DARS), it is 
recommended that the Woodburn Urban Renewal Agency Board approve an 
exterior grant application from Chay Properties, LLC (Applicant), for up to $1,766.  
DARS supports that it was necessary for the applicant to proceed with work prior 
to Agency action. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Woodburn Urban Renewal Agency approved a comprehensive grant and 
loan program on February 14, 2011 for properties within downtown Woodburn.  
The program is designed to provide matching funds for exterior ($10,000) and 
interior ($5,000) improvements to commercial properties located in the historic 
downtown district. The program also provides loan funds ($25,000) to further these 
same improvements.   
 
When Chay Properties, LLC, purchased the properties in 2013, the buildings were 
in need of many structural improvements. With the assistance of the Urban 
Renewal Grant and Loan Program and the Diamond in the Rough historic 
preservation grant, the Applicant was able to complete major structural 
improvements, including two new roofs, a new electrical system and a historic 
façade renovation. The current grant proposal continues the Applicant’s work to 
prepare the properties for tenant occupancy.  
 
Proposal 
 
The exterior grant proposal is for exterior wall restoration on the Hayes Street 
building, re-plastering, sealing and repainting the wall.  Due to time constraints, 
the initial work was done in September to allow completion of the interior side of 

 

44



Urban Renewal Grant and Loan Application Review 
URG 2015-14 405 N. First Street (Chay Properties) 
 
 
the same wall.  DARS was unable to meet until recently and supports the 
Applicant’s need to proceed prior to approval. 
 
Overall project cost for current exterior wall restoration at 405 N. First Street: 
 
Exterior grant:     $1,766 
Estimated cost of all improvements:  $7,064 
Percentage of grant to total project costs: 25% 
 
 
Program Criteria: 
  
Property Location & Ownership 
The property is located at 405 N. First Street. 
 

• That the property is within the Urban Renewal Grant and Loan District 
 
The property is within the Urban Renewal Grant and Loan District. 

 
• That the proposal complies with the downtown architectural design 

standards and signage standards 
 
With this final grant, the work completed in September will match 
the existing wall finish on the rest of the building. 

 
• That the project encourages greater marketability of the Urban 

Renewal Grant and Loan District. 
 

The proposed grant is intended to improve properties in the Urban 
Renewal Grant and Loan District. The exterior improvements further 
enhance the exterior of the building, which in turn makes the building 
marketable for future tenants. 

 
• That the proposal will complement the existing surrounding community. 
 

The work completes the exterior renovation of the building and 
enhances the downtown. 
  
 
 
 

45



Urban Renewal Grant and Loan Application Review 
URG 2015-14 405 N. First Street (Chay Properties) 
 
 

• That the project design works toward restoring the building as closely to 
its original design as possible  

 
The project complements the rest of the building and furthers the 
overall design. 

 
• That building interiors are improved with a focus on addressing      

code-related improvements   
 

Not applicable 
 
• That the project is in the public interest 

 
The Urban Renewal Program specifically identifies the need to 
improve buildings within Woodburn’s Urban Renewal Grant and 
Loan District.    

 
Summary and Conclusion  

 
The Grant and Loan Program is intended to encourage and assist business and 
property owners to invest in the Urban Renewal Grant and Loan District.  This 
particular grant application is intended to assist the Applicant to make 
improvements to their property by re-plastering the exterior of the building, sealing 
and painting the exterior wall.  While the initial repairs were made in September, 
it was necessary to proceed at that time in order to insure that interior work, also 
funded out of grant funds, would not be damaged.  The Agency should address 
this situation in their motion. 
 

 
Conditions of Approval 

 
1. There is a 1/3 match requirement required for the Grant program.  Invoices 

must be submitted for reimbursement.  No grant money will be disbursed until 
the project is completed and is approved by the Agency. 

2. Grant and loan funds may be used for materials and services provided by 
licensed contractors. 

3. Projects shall be completed within one year of approval in order to be eligible 
for reimbursement.  Grants provide for a single payment after receipts are 
provided and all completed work is accepted by the City. 

4. All work will be done by licensed contractors and the applicant needs to 
provide at least three bids for every aspect of work greater than $2,500. 

 

46



Urban Renewal Grant and Loan Application Review 
URG 2015-14 405 N. First Street (Chay Properties) 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
Pictures 
URG 2015-14 Application 
 
 
 
 

 
Hayes Street Wall 

47



Urban Renewal Grant and Loan Application Review 
URG 2015-14 405 N. First Street (Chay Properties) 
 
 

 
Hayes Street Wall 

 
Hayes Street Wall 

48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56


	URA Meeting Minutes 09-14-15
	masonic temple
	URG2015-12
	URG2015-13
	URG2015-14



